1953

Ogden City v. Public Service Comm. Of Utah et al : Brief of Plaintiff

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an action by Ogden City for itself and other municipalities similarly situated to review and annul an order of the Public Service Commission ordering that the defendant Utah Power and Light Company

“Shall state on customer’s bill and collect as a separate item on a pro rata basis from its customers in any municipality wherein is imposed any municipal franchise, occupation, sales or license tax.”

This order was entered upon the Commission's own motion in a proceeding upon application by the Company for Commission approval of proposed Electric Service Rate Schedules, a proceeding designated by the Commission as its Case No. 3780. No question is raised as to the validity of the other orders entered therein.

For the credit and honor of the Company it must be said that it opposed the making of this order upon the stated ground that compliance therewith would constitute a breach of faith with Ogden City and other franchise granting cities, and would be a violation of its franchise contracts. (R. 673—5).

The Commission's order presently affects existing negotiated franchise contracts between the Company and Ogden, Salt Lake City and Sandy, in which the agreed rentals or fees are 2% of gross revenues from power sold within the city limits, and a 1% business license tax levied by South Salt Lake on the business of distributing or selling electricity. There are also seven franchises with small cities, for which total annual fees of \$468.00 are paid. (R. 253).

This brief will address itself to the problem presented in the case of Ogden City, but it appears that the controlling principles are equally applicable to the problems of the other franchise cities. Moreover, all of the arguments presented except those relating to the status of the franchise agreements as *contracts* apply with equal force to the situation of the South Salt Lake business tax.

On March 14, 1951, pursuant to previous negotiations with the Company (R. 252), Ogden City adopted an Ordinance granting to the Company the right or franchise to use the city streets for its power transmission lines for a period of 50 years from January 1, 1951. (R. 229). Section 5 thereof provides that

“As a further consideration for this franchise and *in lieu of* all municipal occupation or license taxes upon the Company, its property or business within the City, the Company agrees to pay a sum equal to two per centum (2%) of the gross revenue derived by the Company from the sale and use of electrical power and energy within the corporate limits of the City.” (R. 230—emphasis supplied.)

Section 7 thereof provides that

“Utah Power & Light Company within thirty days after the effective date of this Ordinance *shall file its acceptance thereof* in writing with the City Recorder of Ogden, *otherwise the same shall be null and void.*” (R. 230—emphasis supplied.)

By Section 8 it was provided that upon such acceptance the franchises under which the Company and its predecessors had been using the City streets for more than 40 years should be repealed. (R. 230—231).

The Company accepted the offer and grant contained in the Ordinance and procured from the Commission a certificate of Convenience and Necessity to exercise the franchise so granted. (R. 232—4). The contract was complete, and the parties began their operations thereunder.

Then on March 26, 1952, the Company filed new rate schedules for electric power to be furnished by it, with an application for the Commission's approval thereof. (R. 1—5; 98—158). The Application was heard by the Commission in May and June, 1952. Previous to this time the franchise fees had been "absorbed" as a general operating expense, paid out of the Company's general operating revenues. (R. 510; 512; 514). The Company proposed to continue this practice.

However, at the hearing the question of the handling of the municipal franchise fees and license taxes was raised by Counsel for the Commission (R. 509, et seq.) and the Commission Chairman indicated that the Commission thought the public would be better informed as to franchise taxes if the tax was billed separately to the public and that such action would stop the levying of municipal franchise taxes. (R. 676).

The Company, however, reported that it had, in negotiating the franchises, represented to the franchise cities, including Ogden, that the franchise fees would not be imposed (or "passed on" to) the inhabitants of the franchise cities, and that the Company had engaged in an implied undertaking with the cities not to do so. (R. 673—4). It objected to the proposal that it violate this undertaking and charge back to the inhabitants the moneys it was supposed to pay the city for their benefit.

G. M. Gadsby, for many years the President and General Manager of the Company, was the only witness examined as to the franchise fees and their bearing on the company's rate structure.

He testified in effect that in negotiating the franchise contracts it was the intention of the Company to "absorb" the franchise fees, and not to bill the customers for the amount thereof. (R. 510—514).

He also testified that the net effect of the franchise tax transactions was too small to have really affected the question of rates at all, and that had their earnings been maintained as they were in 1950, the increase in Franchise fees could have been absorbed by the Company without any rate increase. (R. 511). Obviously other factors brought about the Company's request for a rate incrtase.

The Company has what Mr. Gadsby referred to as a "postage stamp" type of rate; that is it charges all consumers everywhere exactly the same rate for the same service. (R. 526).

In the franchise granting cities there is a "greater density of customers;" there are relatively more customers per mile of line or \$100.00 of investment. (R. 526—7). The relative cost of serving the urban customer is therefore lower.

As a result the ability of the Company to do business in Ogden and the other franchise cities *is of benefit to the customers over the whole system*. If the Company did not have the business in these larger communities, *it could not serve the other communities at the now prevailing rates*. The larger communities *make a positive financial contribution to the rates charged all customers*. Mr. Gadsby testified under oath that although he could not tell whether that contribution was equivalent to a 2% or a 5%, it is something. (R. 527).

There is no evidence to the contrary anywhere in the record.

In other words, because the rates are the same, and the cost and investment incident to serving the urban customers are lower, the urban customers in the franchise cities are already "carrying on their backs" the customers outside these urban areas—perhaps to an even greater extent than the maximum 2% franchise fees.

Moreover, as Mr. Gadsby pointed out, the great business stability and security which results from long term franchises makes the Company's bonds more attractive, so that they can be marketed at a lower rate of interest, thus lowering expenses to the ultimate benefit of the ratepayers. (R. 527).

The Company's President also testified that in the negotiation of a franchise the Company would have something to say about the amount and would not agree to pay an exorbitant charge. (R. 529). There is no contradiction in the record.

Exhibit 23 (R. 222) prepared by the Company's Auditor, Mr. Jones, was introduced in evidence (R. 666). It shows that the total of all municipal levies as applied to 1951 revenues was \$178,423 of which \$99,607 represented recent increases almost entirely attributable to increased franchise fees payable under the newly negotiated long term franchise agreements with Ogden and Salt Lake City. It also shows that the net increases, after allowing an adjustment for decrease in income taxes resulting from this additional expense, was only \$46,517. This amount obviously could have only a negligible affect on the overall rates. Other factors compelled the application of an increase, as is clearly

shown by a comparison of this figure with the figures shown by the Company's comparative income statement, Exhibit 16, (R. 196) which shows, for example, an increase of allowable operating revenue deductions of \$2,982,797 for the year ending March 31, 1952, over the year ending December 31, 1949.

The matter being submitted, the Commission on July 29, 1952, made and entered its Report, Findings and Order (R. 15—30). Section 9 of the Report deals with the problem here under consideration. (R. 24—25). It reads:

The applicant's expenses for the year 1951 include franchise taxes charged by Salt Lake City, Ogden, Sandy City, and South Salt Lake. These franchise taxes are imposed at the rate of two per cent of the gross receipts for electricity sold within the corporate limits in Salt Lake City, Ogden, and Sandy City, and one per cent of the sales in South Salt Lake. Based upon 1951 sales the amount of the franchise tax in the four cities referred to is \$178,423. The position of the applicant is that such tax expenses should be included by it in its overall expenses, and in turn, should be charged against all rate payers in the State. The Commission is of the opinion that such method of charging the tax is unfair to the rate payer residing outside of the cities imposing such taxes, and would encourage all cities served by applicant to levy as high a franchise tax as is possible and require rate payers who are not residents of the particular city to help pay the taxes for the upkeep of such city. The commission is of the further opinion that it is better public policy to have the citizens and rate payers conscious of all taxes being levied by the local municipalities. The Commission

finds, therefore, that such taxes should be filed separately and charged against the rate payers of the municipalities which levy such taxes. This Commission has previously adopted a similar policy in former hearings before it concerning both the Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company and the Mountain Fuel Supply Company. 4/ Nothing was introduced into the present case which would cause the Commission to change its policy as to the method of charging and collecting such taxes. It will follow that in the event any city lowers or removes these city levies, electric rates will be reduced accordingly within that city.

In Section 10 of the Report (R. 25—27) the Commission considered in detail the effect upon net return of various changes in operating expense which had occurred or which would take place as a result of the Commission's order. One of these factors was the decrease in operating expense resulting from the transfer of the charge for franchise fees from the Company to its customers in the franchise cities. The Commission (R. 27) says:

The other adjustments heretofore discussed, and their effect upon the Utah operating income for 1951 may be summarized as follows:

Decrease in Federal		
energy tax	\$334,116	
Adjustment for fran-		
chise taxes	- 178,423	\$512,539
(Note: Handled as a <i>decrease</i>)		
Increase in wages	\$207,260	
Increase in purchased power	178,192	387,452
Net adjustment (<i>decrease in expenses</i>)		\$127,087

4/ Re: The Mountain States Tel. and Tel. Co., I & S Docket No. 83
Decided May 5, 1952

Re: Mountain Fuel Supply Company, Case No. 3755
Decided April 30, 1952

A decrease of \$127,087 in operating expenses would increase the Federal income tax by 52 per cent of such amount, or \$66,085. There would be a net increase of \$61,002, therefore, in the operating income of \$4,980,156, changing such figure to \$5,041,158.

It is notable that the Commission handled this item as a *decrease* in expense and not as an *increase* in the local rates.

The finding and order excludes the Franchise taxes both from the revenues and from the expenses of the Company.

The franchise taxes are no longer recovered as a part of the charges made for electrical service, and then paid out as a Company expense; they are collected from the consumers within the franchise cities as a *separate tax* item, and then turned over to the cities without affecting either revenue or expense accounts on the Company's books. The Company has become, as to these taxes, a mere collection agent for the cities, and the burden of the tax is shifted from the Company to its customers in the franchise cities.

That this is in compliance with the intention of the Commission is made clear by the Commission's approval (R. 32) of the New Rate Schedules (Exhibit 40, R. 838—896) filed pursuant to the Findings and Order. These approved rate schedules make no provision whatsoever

for the recovery of the taxes as a part of the electrical service charges. The taxes are treated as an extraneous collateral item, not as a part of the electric service rates.

The Commission having, upon the findings quoted, made the Order complained of, Ogden City in due time served and filed its petition for a rehearing (R. 34-42).

On August 27, 1952, the Commission denied the petition (R. 43), whereupon this

STATEMENT OF POINTS

Point 1. The order of the Commission is beyond the Commission's jurisdiction, power and authority.

Point 2. There is no evidence to support the material findings of Section 9 of the Commission's Report and Findings of Fact.

Point 3. The report and findings of the Commission do not support its order.

Point 4. The order of the Commission impairs the obligation of the company's franchise contract with the city and its inhabitants in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 of the Constitution of the United States and Article I, Section 18 of the Constitution of Utah.

Point 5. The order of the Commission, by authorizing a specific and arbitrary setoff, releases and extinguishes at least in part the indebtedness, liability and obligation of the company to the city under its franchise contract in violation of Article VI, Sections 27 and 29 of the Constitution of Utah.

Point 6. The order of the Commission unlawfully attempts to exercise power to supervise and interfere with municipal money and property and to levy municipal taxes and perform municipal functions which cannot lawfully be granted the Commission under Article VI, Section 29 and Article XII, Section 8 of the constitution of Utah.

Point 7. The order of the Commission unlawfully transforms a lawful and proper franchise fee exacted from the company into an unlawful tax on the purchase or use of electrical power in violation of Article VI, Section 29, Article XI, Section 5 (a) and Article XIII, Section 5 of the Constitution of Utah.

Point 8. The only case approving the passing on of a franchise fee is distinguishable. The other cases support the city's position.

ARGUMENT

General Considerations

This case represents the culmination of a policy with respect to the imposition of the burden of municipal franchise fees and license taxes which the Commission apparently resolved upon some time in 1951. As the Commission said in its findings,

“This Commission has previously adopted a similar policy in former hearings before it concerning both the Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company and the Mountain Fuel Supply Company.”

By a footnote to its findings (R. 25) the Commission referred to its decision re, the Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company, I & S Docket No. 83, decided May 5, 1952, which is now pending before this Court on certiorari, and its opinion re, Mountain Fuel Supply Company, Case No. 3755, decided April 30, 1952.

It is interesting to note the development and progress of the Commission's policy and theory with respect to municipal taxation and franchise contract fees. In the Mountain Fuel Supply Company case the Commission authorized the utility to "pass on" to the consumer within the municipalities all municipal license taxes and franchise fees imposed *after* the entry of the order. No attempt was made to disturb existing franchise contracts. In the Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company case the Commission granted the utility's application for authority to pass on these taxes and fees to consumers within the municipality, *including* those paid pursuant to the obligation of existing franchise contracts. In the case now before the Court the Commission has taken the last step: It has, against the protest and over the objection of the utility, required the utility to pass on to its consumers within the municipalities in question all municipal franchise fees and license taxes under existing as well as future contracts.

It must at the offset be observed that there is no specific statutory authority and it is admitted that there can be no statutory authority for such action by the Commission. The Commission has set itself up as a policy establishing body for the state with respect to the handling of municipal taxes on public utilities.

Only three courts of last resort have had occasion to consider the question of whether a public service commission may properly authorize a public utility to pass on its municipal franchise fees and license taxes to the consumers within the municipalities concerned. The cases are:

City of Elmhurst vs. Western United Gas
Company
(Illinois, 1936)
1 Northeastern 2nd 144;

State vs. Department of Public Service
(Washington, 1943)
142 Pac. 2nd 498, 532, 536, Syllabi 44-45;

and

State vs. Public Service Commission
(Missouri, 1952)
245 S. W. 2nd 851.

The Missouri case last above cited is the only case clearly and definitely in point here and it was there that the order of the Commission directing the municipal levies in question to be passed on to the consumers within the respective municipalities was void

In the Washington case the Supreme Court of that state distinguished between franchise fees and license taxes and held that the Commission could not order the franchise fees passed on to the consumers within the franchise cities, but approved the order of the Commission in so far as it authorized license taxes to be passed on. The fact is, as will be hereinafter demonstrated, the case at Bar is stronger than either the Washington case or the Missouri case as regards franchise fees and the Washington case is distinguishable from the case at Bar in so far as it affects license taxes.

The Elmhurst case from Illinois approved an order directing franchise fees and license taxes to be passed on, but it is clearly distinguishable upon the facts from the case at Bar and many objections are here raised that were not there urged. We expect to demonstrate in this brief that on reason and authority the order of the Commission below in this case is unlawful and void.

POINT 1. *The order of the Commission is beyond the Commission's jurisdiction, power and authority.*

The Commission has boldly and openly usurped the policy making prerogatives of the Legislature. It recognized that it was fixing and determining policy. In its report (R. 25) the Commission said:

“The Commission is of the further opinion that it is better public policy to have the citizens and taxpayers conscious of all taxes being levied by the local municipalities. The Commission finds, therefore, that such taxes should be billed separately and charged against the rate payers of the municipalities which levy such taxes.”
(Emphasis supplied)

The Commission obviously did not inadvertently drift into policy making while it was concerned with rate making. It has with its eyes open declared that it is fixing policy for the State of Utah.

It must be observed that no such policy as the Commission seeks to establish has ever before been recognized in the State of Utah. On the contrary under the provisions of Article XIII, Section 5 and Article XII, Section 8 of the Constitution of Utah and the statutes enacted by the Legislature thereunder the matters of

municipal taxation and the granting of municipal franchises to electrical power utilities have been considered entirely within the prerogative of the Legislature of the state and of the legislative bodies of the municipalities, to whom the people and the Legislature have in part delegated their legislative and policy making powers in this regard. The policy which has been uniformly established and followed since statehood has been that municipal franchise fees and license taxes should be considered as a general expense of the utility to whom they were levied and should be paid out of their general funds and not passed on to their consumers as a separate tax item on their bills. The Commission, as shown by the record here, has heretofore recognized and followed that established policy. The Legislature has met many times with full knowledge of the policy that has been pursued and has never seen fit to pass any law changing the established policy. It therefore must be presumed to have approved that policy. Under the Constitution and Laws of Utah the cities have authority to grant franchises to utilities and to impose conditions. Clearly the determination of the amount of a city franchises fee, or of a city occupation tax, and of the person upon whom the burden thereof shall be imposed, is a matter of municipal policy. In fixing such policy the local authorities are not subject to control, direct or indirect, of the Commission. They are controlled only by general law and the Constitution. Matters of public policy are not for the Commission.

Union Pacific Railroad Company vs. Public
Service Commission 103 Utah 186, 200-
203, 134 Pac. 2nd 469;

Idaho Power Company vs. Thompson 19
Federal 2nd 547, 580.

As we have indicated, Ogden's franchise with the company is clearly established as one in the nature of a fifty year contract leasing to the company the privilege of using the city's public streets and alleys for pole lines, transmission cables, etc., in the prosecution of the company's private business which it very properly conducts for private profit. This is a privilege which no private person or corporation may enjoy as of right. It may be enjoyed only upon special grant from the sovereign in Utah, the sovereign people. These concepts are fundamental, and in accord with the authorities generally. See

Utah Light and Traction Company vs.
Public Service Commission
101 Utah 99, 118 Pac. 2nd 683, 689.

23 Am. Jur. "Franchises," §§ 2 to 8, pp.
714 to 720; and

37 C. J. S. "Franchises," §§ 1 to 14, pp. 141
to 158.

In Utah, the people have delegated to the local authorities the exclusive right to grant this privilege to electric companies as to city streets, and have specifically forbidden the legislature to grant any such right without the consent of local authority. The sovereign people, in Article XII, Section 8 of the Constitution of Utah, have declared that

"No law shall be passed granting the right to construct and operate a telephone or electric light plant within any city without

the consent of the local authorities who have control of the street or highway proposed to be occupied for such purposes.”

This court has held that, even assuming that this constitutional provision has no application to inter-urban railroads, a municipality clearly has the right to grant *or withhold* the right to the use of the streets therein, and *thus to impose conditions respecting the use thereof for purposes other than the right of ordinary travel thereon.*

Shortino vs. Salt Lake and U. R. Co.,
52 Utah 476, 488; 174 Pac. 860.

The Legislature has, perhaps superfluously, implemented this right granted cities by the Constitution.

In

Section 10-8-14, U. C. A., 1953,
(Section 15-8-14, U. C. A., 1943),

it has provided that

“They (the City Commission) may construct, maintain and operate electric light works . . . or authorize the construction, maintenance and operation of the same by others”

And in

Section 10-8-13, U. S. A., 1953,
(Section 15-8-13, U. C. A., 1943),

it has provided that

“They may regulate the. use of streets”

In the case of

Union Pac. R. Company vs. Public Service
Commission,
103 Utah 186; 134 Pac. 2nd 469
(Syllabi 7, 8 and 9),

this Court held that, under the constitutional and statutory grants of power to cities, a city may impose terms and conditions upon its grant of a franchise, and revoke the franchise for breach thereof. It further held that, although the provisions of a franchise agreement with respect to *rates* are subordinate to the Commission's exclusive control of rates, in all other matters respecting franchise for the special use of city streets the city's powers and rights are not in any way subject to the control of the Commission. The Court commented that inasmuch as it construed the Public Utilities Act as not granting the Commission any jurisdiction over city street franchises, no question is presented of delegation of municipal functions to a special commission in violation of Section 29, Article VI of the Constitution. That section provides that,

“The Legislature shall not relegate to any special commission. . . . any power to make, supervise or interfere with any municipal money, property or effects, whether held in trust or otherwise, to levy taxes, or to perform any municipal functions.”

It is clear that the establishment of public policy with respect to franchises to use city streets is a municipal function vested by the Constitution and laws of Utah in the legislative authority of the municipalities,

and the Commission in attempting to overrule and reverse the policy established by the legislative authority is exceeding its jurisdiction and power and its order is void.

It is equally clear that, in using Ogden's streets and the streets of her sister cities, the Company is enjoying a special privilege which it could not enjoy except by consent of and arrangement with the local representatives of the inhabitants. These streets have been opened, improved and maintained by the inhabitants, either by special assessment levied on the abutting property owners or by general tax levy on all property owners within the corporate limits. The streets belong to the cities' inhabitants. In using the streets for electric power lines, the company imposes thereon a special burden, and enjoys a special privilege *which no other inhabitant or taxpayer enjoys*. It is only proper that it should compensate the inhabitants for suffering that burden and granting that privilege.

That is a very proper policy firmly established by the Constitution and statutes of Utah. It has been recognized by the decisions of this Court above cited.

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