1953

Ogden City v. Public Service Comm. Of Utah et al : Defendant Public Service Commission's Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

There is apparently only one issue in this case and that is whether or not just and reasonable practices require that the company construct its rates so that, so far as practicable, money to discharge municipal levies shall be collected from its customers on a state-wide system basis.

POINT I.

THE ORDER OF THE COMMISSION IS WITH-
IN THE COMMISSION'S JURISDICTION, POW-
ER AND AUTHORITY.

Since this same contention has been raised by Ogden City in a similar case involving an order of the commission to the same effect as the order herein attacked and an appeal to this court (In re The Mountain States Tel. & Tel. Co., I. & S. Docket No. 83, May 5, 1952, appeal case No. 7884) wherein the problem was thoroughly aired and authorities cited; it is believed unnecessary to duplicate the full review of authorities cited therein.

However, Section 54-4-1, and Section 54-4-4, U. C. A. 1953, gives the commission general jurisdiction over this subject. Also, in the case of Mountain States Tel. & Tel. Co. v. Public Service Commission, et al., 155 P. (2d) 184, 107 U. 502 (1945) the court said:

“The determination that rates charged are unjust, unreasonable, or confiscatory is not a judicial function, but a legislative function to be exercised by Public Service Commission as an arm of the legislature.”

Certainly it cannot be successfully contended that the statutes governing the Public Service Commission do not plainly bring within its jurisdiction the type of problem sought to be solved by the commission's order herein attacked.

The commission is under a statutory duty (Sec. 54-3-1, U. C. A. 1953) to see that all charges made by a public

utility "shall be just and reasonable"; and that is exactly what the commission has sought to do in its order.

It is to be noted that the so-called franchise ordinance of Ogden City does not attempt to specify where the money should come from with which the company is to pay the sums required by its terms. It merely says that the company shall pay it. The company gets its money by establishing rates to be paid by its customers and the rates to be charged by the company are under the control and within the jurisdiction of the commission.

It must be concluded that the order of the commission is within its jurisdiction, power and authority.

POINT II.

THERE IS EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT THE MATERIAL FINDINGS OF SEC. 9, OF THE COMMISSION'S REPORT AND FINDINGS OF FACT.

Under this point it would seem advisable to point up the well known distinction between evidentiary facts and ultimate facts. An ultimate fact is in the nature of a conclusion based upon other facts which are called evidentiary or primary facts. In this case we find the primary or evidentiary facts to be that the plaintiff (plus some 26 other municipalities) have imposed franchise taxes upon the defendant company measured by the gross receipts of the company from business within the municipality. The money to pay for this levy is contributed by the company's customers in unincorporated areas and in municipalities which

do not have such a tax, and, I suppose in municipalities which have a similar tax to the extent that plaintiff's levy exceeds the levy of that municipality. From these primary or evidentiary facts are to be drawn the ultimate fact or facts.

In this case the commission has drawn from the evidentiary facts set forth above the conclusion or ultimate fact that the practice of the company in collecting this franchise tax from all users systemwide is an unreasonable and unjust rate practice by the company.

Under Section 54-3-8, U. C. A. 1953, the commission is given the "power to determine any question of fact arising under this section," namely, when is there an unjust and unreasonable discrimination between rate payers in different localities?

The views of the Supreme Court of Washington in the case of *State v. Department of Public Service*, 142 P (2d) 489, at page 535, refers to this same problem and uses the following language:

"as stated above, the basis upon which excise taxes have been levied by the cities vary greatly, ranging from four per cent of the gross income to one per cent. No one can say how far this variation might be extended. It suggests large possibilities of municipal action. Manifestly there is an element of unjust discrimination in allowing one community to levy and collect from respondent or any public utility engaged in business throughout the state an occupation tax which in turn the utility would collect by a state-wide increase in rates."

In addition it should be kept in mind that prior to the enactment of this franchise tax by Ogden City the company

paid $\frac{3}{4}$ of 1% ; then by the enactment of this ordinance the payment was increased to 2% of the gross receipts. It does not appear that this increased rate coincided with any increased use or privilege to the company. The company merely continues to enjoy the rights and privileges which it has for many, many years. Nor can the extension of time satisfy the concept of consideration because certainly Ogden City did not plan to do without an electric utility, and it is supposed that should Ogden City desire to go into the electric business it can still do so in spite of the franchise ordinance.

The conclusion must be made that the Ogden City Ordinance is plainly a revenue raising tax from which it may be properly concluded that it is manifestly "unjust and unreasonable" to spread the cost of this tax system wide.

POINT III.

THE ORDER OF THE COMMISSION DOES NOT IMPAIR THE OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY OGDEN CITY'S FRANCHISE ORDINANCE.

It is to be observed at the outset that the ordinance of Ogden City does not attempt to specify any particular source of the money to pay the charge levied upon the company. The ordinance does not require the company *not* to impose this franchise tax upon the Company's customers in Ogden City.

It would almost appear that Ogden City believed that the company has an independent source of income separate and apart from the users of the electric utility. It would

also appear that Ogden City is claiming a constitutional right to tax residents of other municipalities, in that it claims that its own citizens should be free from the tax levied upon the company.

However, as pointed out in the telephone case, we are concerned in this case with the one issue, namely, what shall be the source of the revenue to the company by which this franchise tax shall be paid? It is considered useless to engage ourselves in the circular argument that the citizens of Ogden are the real parties in interest and therefore are being deprived of the benefit of their "contract"; because the users of the utility are, by the same reasoning, the real parties in interest on the other side, and therefore many of the same people are both the obligors and obligees to this "contract". Thus we arrive at a patently untenable position because you cannot be both free and bound at the same time.

Thus for the sake of sensibility we must return to the analysis that all we are concerned with here is the problem of public utility rates and revenue.

Reference should be made to point III, in the Brief of Defendant, case No. 7884 which is now before this court where this question as raised by plaintiff is thoroughly discussed; and inasmuch as this case is in principle a companion case to that one it is persuasive authority on this question.

When the alleged "contract" does not specify the source of the money with which the company is to pay the levy, how can it possibly be said that the order of the Commission impairs the obligations of that franchise?

POINT IV.

THE ORDER OF THE COMMISSION DOES NOT ATTEMPT TO EXERCISE SUPERVISORY POWER OVER, NOR INTERFERE WITH MUNICIPAL MONEY AND PROPERTY.

Before the order in question was issued, the Company was obligated to pay the City certain taxes and to render certain services. This duty remains completely unimpaired; the City will receive precisely the same money and service, at the same time, at the same rate, and from the same taxpayer as before. The Commission has the undisputed power to regulate and control the rate relationship between the Company and its customers whether these customers live in Ogden City or elsewhere. The Commission's order affects only the relationship between the Company and its customers, and nothing more.

POINT V.

THE ORDER OF THE COMMISSION DOES NOT UNLAWFULLY ATTEMPT TO EXERCISE POWER TO SUPERVISE AND INTERFERE WITH MUNICIPAL MONEY AND PROPERTY; NOR DOES IT CONSTITUTE AN EXERCISE OF THE TAXING POWER.

Plaintiff's Point VI, VII and VIII will be discussed under this Point.

Again at the outset it must be pointed out that the franchise ordinance does not attempt to prescribe the source of the money to pay the 2% levy. Neither does the

order of the Commission herein name Ogden City as a party to whom this order has been issued. How can it be said that the Commission has attempted to interfere with the municipal money and property when the only order issued by the Commission is directed to the Utah Power and Light Company which clearly comes within the scope of the Commission's regulatory power and authority?

Again it must be observed that Ogden City supposes that the Company has some source of income other than its customers. Any rate order of the commission is for the purpose of transferring the obligations of the Company to its customers because to do otherwise would expose the Company to an unconstitutional confiscation of its property.

The city of Ogden is in the odd position of claiming the power (and right) to levy a tax which, of necessity, the major part of which is to be paid by persons outside of its territorial jurisdiction. It would appear that we have here a thinly veiled purpose, on the part of Ogden City, to extend the source of its tax revenues to include those living in the rest of the State.

If weight is to be given to Ogden City's argument under Point VI of its brief, then it would be necessary to hold that none of the money to pay this 2% levy could, under our constitution, be apportioned to residents of Ogden City, but would have to be obtained from electric users outside of Ogden City. To announce the proposition is to confirm its absurdity.

It would appear that when plaintiff cites and quotes from *State vs. Dept. of Public Service*, 142 P. 498, 535, in

its points VII and VIII, a sufficient answer is given to the arguments advanced by Ogden City thereunder. Does it make a serious difference, if indeed the Commission's order creates a difference, whether the levy of the city is passed on to the Company's customers as a separate item or as "special exchange rates * * * which will in effect require the rate payers in each community to absorb a sum equal to the amount of the tax?" In this phase of the problem it would appear that we are faced with a distinction without a difference. Certainly it does not change the substantive effect of "passing on" the levy by merely changing the method of billing. What Ogden City really means is that its residents should not be required to pay this 2% levy no matter what it is called.

CONCLUSION

The issues raised in this case are substantially the same as, and will be controlled by the decision of the court in, case No. 7884 now being considered by this court, and the court's attention is drawn to that case.

Our conclusion is the same as our beginning, namely, that this case is directly and necessarily concerned with the source of certain company revenue with which to pay municipal levies in the nature of franchise or license taxes. It is necessarily concluded that "just and reasonable" practices do not require that these revenues come from a system wide source, and it was proper for the commission to conclude that the practice of so obtaining these revenues constitutes an "unjust and unreasonable" discrimination in

rates as against those living outside of the taxing municipalities.

Therefore the order of the commission is reasonable and valid and should be affirmed.